
 

 

 

Helen Barrington 
Director of Legal and 
Democratic Services 
County Hall 
Matlock 
Derbyshire 
DE4 3AG 
 
Extension 38357 
Direct Dial 01629 538357 
Ask for Danny 
Sunderland 
 

 
PUBLIC 

 
To:  Members of Cabinet Member meeting - Strategic Leadership, Culture and 
Tourism 
 
 
 

Monday, 11 January 2021 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
Please attend a meeting of the Cabinet Member meeting - Strategic 
Leadership, Culture and Tourism to be held at 3.30 pm on Tuesday, 19 
January 2021. This meeting will be held virtually. As a member of the 
public you can view the meeting via the County Council's website. The 
website will provide details of how to access the meeting, the agenda for 
which is set out below. 
 
Yours faithfully, 

 
Helen Barrington 
Director of Legal and Democratic Services  
 
A G E N D A 
 
PART I - NON-EXEMPT ITEMS  
 
1.   To receive declarations of interest (if any)  

 
2.   To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 11 December 2020 (Pages 1 

- 4) 
 

3.   Members' Community Leadership Scheme (Pages 5 - 6) 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
4.   Appointments to outside bodies (Pages 7 - 8) 

 
 



 

1 

 

PUBLIC                                                              
          
MINUTES of a meeting of the CABINET MEMBER FOR STRATEGIC 
LEADERSHIP, CULTURE AND TOURISM held on 11 December 2020. 
 

PRESENT 
 

Cabinet Member – Councillor B Lewis 
 
Also in attendance – Councillor P Smith 
 
Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillor R Flatley 
 
Declarations of interest 
 
Councillor B Lewis declared personal interests in agenda item no.3 (a) (minute 
no.41/20) as a member of Marketing Peak District and Derbyshire and agenda 
item no.3 (b) (minute no.42/20) as the Chairman of Derwent Valley Mills World 
Heritage Site. 
 
40/20  MINUTES RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 
28 October 2020 be confirmed as a correct record. 
 
41/20  MARKETING PEAK DISTRICT AND DERBYSHIRE – 
FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTION 2020-23 Since May 2017, the County Council 
had recognised the visitor economy as a critical part of Derbyshire’s economic 
offer to UK and international visitors, and potential investors. As a result, the 
Council had developed a three-year funding agreement of £100,000 per 
annum linked to delivery of a service level agreement that set out planned 
activity and delivery targets. The first of these agreements was put in place for 
the period 2017 to 2020 and a new service level agreement was due to be 
confirmed for the period 2020 to 2023, alongside confirmed funding of 
£100,000 per annum for the same period. Given the Covid-19 challenges that 
had been outlined in the report, it had not been possible to finalise the nature 
of the new service level agreement until recently, with most of the forward 
actions and delivery targets now being linked to the Covid-19 Economic 
Recovery Strategy and Action Plan.  
 

It was therefore proposed to confirm the funding support to Marketing 
Peak District and Derbyshire (MPDD) of £100,000 per annum for the financial 
years 2020-21, 2021-22 and 2022-23, with a further report in the early New 
Year 2021 setting out the proposed delivery actions and targets in a new 
service level agreement (for the period up to March 2022). The revised 
Service Level Agreement with MPDD would deliver the required support and 
outputs to the sector in recovering from the impact of Coronavirus (Covid-19). 
 

Agenda Item 2 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



 

 2 

 RESOLVED to (1) approve the Council’s contribution of £100,000 per 
year paid in two instalments in April and October, over the period 2020-21 to 
2022-23, to support Marketing Peak District and Derbyshire which can be 
funded from the Economy and Regeneration revenue budget; and  
 
 (2) note the pending Service Level Agreement covering the period up to 
March 2023 will be subject to a report to a Cabinet Member Meeting in the 
early New Year 2021.   
 
42/20  DERWENT VALLEY MILLS WORLD HERITAGE SITE 
(DVMWHS) GREAT PLACE SCHEME EXTENSION OF TIME The Great 
Place Scheme was a programme of 20 projects running in the DVMWHS and 
was jointly funded by the National Lottery Heritage Fund (NLHF) and Arts 
Council England (ACE). The total value of the Great Place Scheme was 
£1,486,768. A sum of £150,000 of match funding for the Great Place Scheme 
was from the DVMWHS Partnership reserve that was held by the County 
Council.  
 

The Great Place Scheme was initially scheduled for completion by the 
end of December 2020. The Great Place Scheme was envisaged as a three-
year programme of projects, with by far the greatest level of delivery taking 
place in the final year. Unfortunately, Coronavirus (Covid-19) had significantly 
impacted on this delivery. As a result, the NLHF, which administered the grant 
funding on behalf of itself and ACE, had granted an extension to the scheme 
until 30 June 2021. It was also suggested that the project assistant post 
connected with the administration of the scheme, be extended to the end of 
March 2021. 
 
 RESOLVED to (1) approve the extension of the Derwent Valley Mills 
World Heritage Site (DVMWHS) Great Place Scheme until 30 June 2021; and 
 
 (2) note the extension of the project assistant post to the end of March 
2021. 
 
43/20  AWARD OF GRANTS TO EXTERNAL RECIPIENTS – VITAL 
VALLEY The Great Place Scheme included the ‘New Access Solutions 
Improving Accessibility’ project to improve the accessibility of the World 
Heritage Site for people with disabling conditions, their families, friends and 
companions either living in or visiting in the area. This would improve the 
experience of the Derwent Valley Mills World Heritage Site (DVMWHS) for 
everyone, encouraging people with disabilities to visit as they had a more 
welcoming experience that catered for their needs. New Access Solutions had 
a total grant pot of £55,000 made up of £49,500 NLHF monies and £4,500 
contribution from DVMWHS reserves. A sum of £9,120 had already been 
spent from the NLHF grant of £55,000.  

 

Page 2



 

 3 

The proposed awards, set out in the report, would enable sites and 
operatives within the DVMWHS to provide improved access and experiences 
for people to engage with the DVMWHS. Specific details of the applications 
for grants were attached as an appendix to the report. 
 
  RESOLVED to approve the award of grants from the National Lottery 
Heritage Fund for the Great Place Scheme in relation to: 
 

 Maximum of £9,744 to Accessible Derbyshire; 

 Maximum of £7,500 to The Arkwright Society; 

 Maximum of £7,500 to Cromford Community Centre Association; 

 Maximum of £1,000 to Derbyshire County Council Countryside 
Service; 

 Maximum of £1,000 to The Friends of Darley Open Spaces; and 

 Maximum of £500 to Derby City Council 
 
 
44/20  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC RESOLVED that under 
Regulation 4 (2)(b) of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that in view of the nature of the items of business, that if members of 
the public were present, exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 
1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 would be disclosed to 
them. 
 
SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS CONDUCTED AFTER THE PUBLIC WERE 
EXCLUDED FROM THE MEETING 
 
1. To confirm the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 28 October 2020 

(contains exempt information) 
 
45/20  MINUTES RESOLVED that the exempt minutes of the meeting 
held on 28 October 2020 be confirmed as a correct record. 
  
 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC 

         
    Agenda Item  

 
DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
CABINT MEMBER FOR STRATEGIC LEADERSHIP, CULTURE AND 

TOURISM 
 

19 January 2021 
 

Report of the Managing Executive Director  
 

MEMBERS’ COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP SCHEME 
 
1 Purpose of Report    

To allocate additional resources to the Members’ Community Leadership 
Scheme (MCLS) to enable members to support local communities during the 
Winter. 

2 Information and Analysis   

The Scheme allocates to each of the 64 County Councillors an annual fund of 
£3,860 which can be used to support local projects and activities in their 
Divisions. 
 
At the end of each financial year (except an election year), any unspent balance 
is carried forward to the next financial year and a ‘new year’ balance of £3,860 
is allocated. 

On 23 April 2020, Cabinet considered and approved a report which provided an 
additional allocation of £3,860 to Members to support their local communities 
throughout the Covid-19 pandemic, assisting with the recovery and delivery of 
social, economic, health, environmental and cultural services to support quality 
of life in communities.   

As 2021 is an election year, it was agreed that the additional allocations of funds 
would not be made after 1 December 2020 and that all members MCLS 
accounts would be capped at £1,000 on 1 December 2020, to ensure that all 
Members had an equitable amount to spend in the last quarter of the 2020-21 
financial year.   

As at 30 November 2020, a total of 664 applications had been received and 
approved which were aimed at supporting local organisations and activities 
through the pandemic period.   

The Council recognises that communities have had a pivotal role during the 
pandemic and the Council Plan ambition is to ensure that the Council continues 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



PUBLIC 

to work with communities, sharing responsibility for improving their areas and 
supporting each other.   

In these unprecedented circumstances and with the introduction of the recent 
further lockdown measures, it is considered vital to continue to support 
residents and communities during this difficult period. It is therefore proposed 
that each Elected Member be provided with an additional allocation of £1,000. 
This will be added to the existing balance that remained in each individual 
Members account following the 1 December 2020 deadline. Members can 
continue to submit applications using the same process as is currently in place.  
Applications will have to be received on or before 14 March 2021.  

Any unspent balance as at 14 March 2021 will be returned to the General 
Reserve.   

3 Financial Considerations  

Following the additional allocation of funds, the total amount of unused balances 
as at 30 November 2020, which includes where the cap has been set at £1,000, 
is £84,555. The potential total costs of the new proposal is £64,000, which can 
be met from the unused balances. 

4 Other Considerations  

In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been 
considered: legal and human rights, equality of opportunity, health, 
environmental, transport, property, crime and disorder and social value 
considerations. 

5 Background Papers  

Members Community Leadership Scheme – Cabinet 23 April 2020. 

6 Key Decision?  

No 

7 Is it necessary to waive the call-in period?  

No 

8 Officer's Recommendation  

That the Cabinet Member approves the allocation of additional resources to the 
Members’ Community Leadership Scheme by providing an additional £1,000 to 
each Elected Member. 

 
EMMA ALEXANDER 

Managing Executive Director, Commissioning, Communities and Policy 

Page 6



 

                         Agenda Item No. 
DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
CABINET MEMBER MEETING – 

STRATEGIC LEADERSHIP, CULTURE AND TOURISM 
 

19 January 2021 
 

Report of the Director of Legal and Democratic Services 
 

APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 
To approve amendments to the list of appointments to outside bodies. 
 
Information and Analysis 
 
The list of outside body appointments was agreed by the Cabinet Member at 
the meeting held on 5 August 2020.  
 
Subsequently, the Council has been made aware of further changes which 
need to be ratified as detailed below:  
 

(a) To replace Councillor Trevor Ainsworth with Councillor Garry Hickton as 
the Council’s representative on the Rail Forum Midlands. 
 

(b) To replace Councillor George Wharmby with Councillor Robert Flatley 
on the Derbyshire Schools Forum 
 

(c) Councillor D McGregor (Local member) be appointed to the Whitwell 
Works Liaison Committee (inadvertently omitted from the 5 August 2020 
report) 
 

(d) The Derbyshire Dales & High Peak Joint Community Safer Strategy 
Group has re-formed into two partnerships as follows and confirmation of 
County Council representatives is required :- 
(i)  Derbyshire Dales Community Safety Partnership –Councillor J Atkin  
(ii) High Peak Community Safety Partnership – Councillor G Wharmby  
 

 
Other Considerations 
 
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been 
considered; financial, legal, prevention of crime and disorder, equality of 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

opportunity; and environmental, health, human resources, property, social 
value and transport considerations. 
 
Key Decision No 
 
Call In Is it required that call-in be waived for any decision in this report?  No 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Cabinet Member resolves to:- 
 

(1) replace Councillor Trevor Ainsworth with Councillor Garry Hickton as 
the Council’s representative on Rail forum Midlands; 

 
(2) replace Councillor George Wharmby with Councillor Robert Flatley 

on the Derbyshire Schools Forum 
 
(3) appoint Councillor D McGregor (Local member) to the Whitwell 

Works Liaison Committee; 
 
(4) appoint Councillor J Atkin to the Derbyshire Dales Community 

Safety Partnership; and  
 
(5) appoint Councillor G Wharmby to the High Peak Community Safety 

Partnership.  
 
 
 
 
 

Helen Barrington 
Director of Legal and Democratic Services 

 

Page 8


	Agenda
	2 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 11 December 2020
	3 Members' Community Leadership Scheme
	4 Appointments to outside bodies

